
 

2024.07.22 Board Minutes approved 28.10.2024  Page 1 of 7 

MINUTE OF A MEETING OF THE MEMBERS OF THE SCOTTISH LEGAL COMPLAINTS 
COMMISSION: 12.30pm on MONDAY 22 July 2024 held in the SLCC Boardroom 

 
PRESENT: 
LAY:      LAWYER: 
Jane Malcolm, Chair    Lynne Collingham  
Jean Grier       
Niki Maclean, Vice Chair  
John Stevenson 
 
Apologies: 
Anne Gibson 
Dale Hughes  
Richard McMeeken 
 
In attendance: 
Neil Stevenson (CEO)   Louise Burnett (DoBP)    
Vicky Crichton (DoPP)   Caroline Robertson (DoR) 

 (Secretariat - minutes)     
 
Abbreviations used:  
WIP – Work in Progress     DC – Determination Committee 
FMR – Financial Management Report   LSS – Law Society of Scotland 
AC – Audit Committee     FoA – Faculty of Advocates  
CI – Case Investigator     CIM – Case Investigations Manager  
RPO – Relevant Professional Organisation  SGvt – Scottish Government   
IMT – Investigations Management Team   CoS – Court of Session 
JT – Journey Time     WT – Working Time 
DoR– Director of Resolution    DoPP – Director of Public Policy 
DoBP – Director of Business Performance  SP – Scottish Parliament 
 
Private Member only session, after which the Meeting Chair invited SMT and Secretariat to 
join the meeting at 12.46pm 
 
1. Welcome and Apologies 
1.1 The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting and thanked everyone for their input into a 

very productive and informative morning Development Session. 
1.2 Apologies were noted from the Members, Anne Gibson, Dale Hughes, and Richard 

McMeeken.  
 
2. Declaration of Interests 
2.1 The Chair noted the standard declarations of interest declared by Member, Lynne 

Collingham in relation to any pecuniary interest with regards to budgetary discussions and 
the Reform Bill process/responses by the SLCC. 
 

3. Minutes and Matters Arising from Board Meeting on 22 April 2024 and 
Conference Call on 10 June 2024  

3.1 The Minute of the Board Meeting was noted and approved as read, along with the 
Conference call notes. 

 
4. Board Actions Register 
4.1 Members noted the ongoing Actions and agreed all other completed actions be removed 

from the register. Updates were provided on the following: 
4.1.1 Action 515 – ongoing, date still to be confirmed. 
4.1.2 Action 552 – ongoing, DoBP still clarifying with Insurance brokers. 
 



 

2024.07.22 Board Minutes approved 28.10.2024  Page 2 of 7 

5. Key Issues 
5.1 The CEO spoke to the paper presented and Members agreed all items would be taken as 

read, with additional updates provided on specific matters.  
5.2   Reform – the DoPP advised SP are in recess at present so there are no new points to 

update on at present. However, we do remain in touch with our contacts in SGvt.  
5.3 ABS – the CEO advised Members, the LSS have informed us this been delayed and gave 

a brief explanation to the reasons. 
5.4 Communication and Stakeholder engagement – Members noted the update provided 

by the DoPP. 
5.5 Oversight – the DoPP stated our report on the FoA’s conduct complaint processes has 

now been published, advising there has been good engagement with the FoA on the 5 
recommendations suggested. Members noted the update provided by the DoPP. 

5.6 Cyber update – the DoBP advised we have now been awarded the Cyber Essentials 
Plus accreditation and advised they have begun the roll-out of new laptops to all staff. 

5.7 Digital and AI update – Members noted the update provided.  
5.8 S17 Work Update – the DoR advised they would be attending the CoS for a Contempt of 

Court Hearing and gave a brief background to the reasons for this. Members noted the 
new sprint involving S17 cases, where we will trial going straight to investigation without 
the firm’s file, then subsequently moving straight to a member decision instead of using 
S17 powers to seek files. Members enquired if the CI would identify these cases when 
listing them for Determination. The DoR confirmed they would and the CIM project lead 
would ensure there is a process in place for this.  

5.9 Members noted plans for an audit of solicitors’ failure to respond and/or extension 
requests. This could be compared to the previous audit from two years ago, to assess if 
any progress were being made. Members enquired if there would be an extra cost if there 
was an external review of files, and who would conduct this. The DoR explained this 
would be conducted by the Internal Auditors (IA) and confirmed there would be a cost, if 
the audit was fully scoped. It was noted there was a value to an independent review as 
stakeholder had previously questioned the level of non-compliance cited by the SLCC. 
The CEO clarified this project would form part of the annual IA Audit Plan and was 
included in the 2024/25 budget costs. Members acknowledged this would be a large piece 
of work, and that it would depend on capacity of staff as to when it is planned to 
commence. 

5.10 Operating Plan – Members noted the update provided. 
5.11 McClure Solicitors, former firm – Members noted the update provided now included 

RAG ratings against each of the risks and mitigations identified by SMT. Members 
thanked the CEO for this as they found it helpful. The CEO reported incoming case 
numbers were now stabilising, and CIs are working through all cases. The DoPP was 
pleased to report that the previous issues regarding delays to payments of the awards of 
compensation, actual and measurable loss to parties, and the complaint levy payments, 
now seem to have been resolved. 

5.12 LSS Conference – dates noted by Members. 
5.13 SSDT Burden of Proof Consultation – Members noted the current consultation from 

SSDT on the burden of proof applied to misconduct. The CEO explained that the SSDT 
currently use ‘beyond all reasonable doubt’, which has been for a long time out of kilter 
with most professional regulators in the UK. The CEO gave an overview of the SLCC 
policy view on this, which was included in the reform debate, and in the previous 
consultation response to SSDT in 2019.  

5.14 The Chair provided an overview of observations received in advance from Members. 
Various concerns were noted about current processes in the SSDT which may need 
adjusted if the burden of proof changed (and which, if not changing, would be of concern 
were the burden of proof to change). A range of views were expressed on the potential 
changes, with individual members noting personal views and those of other organisations 
they were involved in. The Chair noted the long-term published policy position of the 
SLCC on the matter and that if other factors raised concern, were this change to be 
made, then we should address those issues in our response. The CEO thanked Members 









 

2024.07.22 Board Minutes approved 28.10.2024  Page 6 of 7 

13.4 Members noted the new SET project for capturing feedback by trialling ‘Trustpilot’ and 
how to respond to reviews left in this domain. However, Members noted their caution as it 
was very difficult to redact so as not to identify staff if a member of the public leaves a 
review. Members sought clarification on how we captured – ‘you said/we did’ etc. The 
DoPP reminded Members this was in the annual report last year and would again be 
covered this year. It was also in the 2024/25 Op Plan for Customer Service feedback 
project work to continue thinking about how we do this.  

13.5 Members noted there was an interesting point (3.16) raised under the free text comments, 
in relation to compensation awards and sought clarification on when these were last 
reviewed. The CEO advised these are set in statute (2007 Act), the maximum we can 
award overall is £20,000, and within that a maximum of £5,000 for loss and distress, 
however noting it is common for claims to be higher even though the IPS value was low. 
Members discussed whether information should be shared with parties on this. The CEO 
advised information was available on the website but acknowledged it was difficult to 
balance the expectations of parties concerned. Clarification was also sought as to 
whether there were case studies on our website and whether we sign-posted to other 
organisations. The CEO and DoPP confirmed we do. 

13.6 The Chair thanked SMT for their explanation to the paper presented. 
 

14. Chair’s Report 
14.1 The Chair advised they had a good constructive meeting with the LSS executive, which 

included their CEO, President, and Chair of their Regulatory Committee, along with our 
CEO and DoPP.  

 
15. AOB 
15.1 The Chair reported Rem Com would again be meeting quarterly going forward. 
 
16. Update note from the Audit Committee of 8 July 2024  
16.1 Members noted the paper presented. 

 
17. Minute from Consumer Panel of 5 March 2024 
17.1 Members noted the paper presented. 
 
18. Chief Executive’s Report 
18.1 Members noted the paper presented and sought an update on the meeting with the LSS 

regarding budget/levy. The DoBP gave a brief overview of the meeting, during which the 
LSS were reminded of the statutory timescales for payment of the levy. The DoBP 
advised the estimating of numbers were between an acceptable band and will be 
reviewed for next year. 

 
19. Date of Next Meetings 
19.1 Members noted the date of the next meeting would be a Board Conference Call on Monday 

23 September 2024 at 10am to discuss the budget consultation responses.  
 
20. Review of the Meeting 
20.1 With no other business the meeting concluded. 
 
3.00pm the SMT and Secretariat left the meeting 
 
Private Member only session, after which the Meeting Chair confirmed with the Secretariat 
the Board Discussion on item 20.  
 
  



 

2024.07.22 Board Minutes approved 28.10.2024  Page 7 of 7 

21. Chief Executive’s End of Year Review 2023/24 and 2024/25 Targets for CEO/SMT 
21.1 The Chair confirmed that Members approved and warmly endorsed the CEO’s end of 

year review, forward objectives and proposed learning and development for the year 
ahead, as set out in the Chair’s paper discussed in the private session.  

 
3.10pm Board Meeting ends 




